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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited.

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of GMR Hyderabad
Aviation SEZ Limited. (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information. (hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31st March,
2020 give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013("Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS’) specified
under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs(financial position) of the company as
at 31st March, 2020, and its loss(financial performance including other comprehensive
income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion:

3.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India('ICAI’) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Emphasis of Matter Paragraph

4.  We draw attention to the Note 36(i) to the Ind AS Financial Statements regarding the
recoverability of dues from GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited
(GACAEL) formally known as GMR Aerospace Engineering Limited (GAEL), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company’s holding company, M/s GMR Hyderabad
International Airport Limited (GHIAL) and GMR Aero Technic Limited (GATL), which
is a wholly owned subsidiary of GACAEL.

Our opinion is not qualified on the above said matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements:

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial
performance including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate Vaccounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable
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and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

7. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

8. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements:

9. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

10. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

(i) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.
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(iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

(iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

(v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

11. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of
any identified misstatements in the financial statements

12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

13. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

14. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in “Appendix - A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extend applicable.
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15. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

d)

f)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March
2020 taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors are disqualified
as on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed as directors in terms of section 164(2) of
the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate report in “Appendix B”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Ind AS financial statements - (Refer Note 40 to the Ind AS
financial statements).

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

Continuation Sheet
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iii. There were no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31st March 2020.

For K.S Rao & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 0031095

Hitesh Kumar P
Place: Bengaluru Partner
Date: 1st June, 2020 Membership No. 233734

UDIN No: 20233734AAAACU9341

Chartered \*
~CCountants
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Appendix - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors” Report to the members of the Company
on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020 we report that:

(i) Inrespect of the Company’s fixed assets (Property, Plant and Equipment)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets (Property, Plant and
Equipment).

(b) The Management has not conducted any physical verification of fixed assets
(Property, Plant and Equipment) during the year. However, the Company has
the program of physical verification of fixed assets (Property, Plant and
Equipment) at reasonable intervals of time and to deal with material
discrepancies identified on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable
properties are held in the name of the Company. In respect of immovable
properties been taken on lease and disclosed as fixed assets in the Ind AS
financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the company.

(ii) The activities of the Company did not involve purchase of inventory and sale of
goods during the year and accordingly Clause (ii) of the paragraph 3 of the Order is
not applicable to the Company for the year.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to any company, firm, Limited Liability
Partnership or other parties listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, clauses from (iii) (a) to (iii) (c) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has no loans, investments, guarantee and security which meets the
requirements of section 185 and 186 of the Act.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted deposits and does not have any unclaimed deposits within the meaning of
Section 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
(as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not
applicable.

(vi) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
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section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

(vii) a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the
records as produced and examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular is
in depositing with appropriate authorities the undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax,
customs duty, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, and there are no
arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at 31st March, 2020 for a period of more than
six months form date they become payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in
respect of income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, goods and service tax,
customs duty, excise duty, cess which have not been deposited on account of
dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, we are of
the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial
institution, bank and government. The Company has not issued any debentures
during the year and does not have any outstanding dues in respect of debenture
holders. '

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable.

(x)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
provisions of the section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to the Act are complied.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of
such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares of fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year.
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(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,

paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve

Bank of India Act 1934,

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 01st June, 2020

For K.S Rao & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration no: 0031095

3

Hitesh Kumar P

Partner ,

Membership number: 233734
UDIN No. 20233734AAAACU9341
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Appendix - B to the Independent Auditors” Report

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of

GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2020 in

conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
" ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘'ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
thaintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
includes obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
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The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that,

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at 31st March 2020, based on
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For K.S Rao & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration no: 0031095

N

Hitesh Kumar P

Partner v
Place: Bengaluru Membership number: 233734
Date: 01st June, 2020 UDIN No. 20233734AAAACU9341

[ grartered

sccountants




GMR HYDERABAD AVIATION SEZ LIMITED

QN No.UAS209TG20070L0056527
BALANCESHEET AS QN MARCH 31 2020
X in Lakh
Asat Asak
Fertlculars Notes March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Mon-currant assen
{a) Proparty, Plant and Equipment 3 8,657.55 7,161.37
{b) Right-of-Use 4 2118 .
{€) Capital wark-in-progress 5 267,78 1,482,18
{¢} Income Tax Assat 122.13 11509
{e) Other non-current assats B $34.95 22042
10,603.60 8,979.07
Current assets
{2) Financlal Assets
{i} investments 7 42039 44085
{il) Trade receivables B 6.414,5¢ 583598
(iii} Cash and cash aquivalents ; 9 7578 3382
{iv) Bank balances other than {iii} above b 2,024.46 297.00
{v} Other Financial A<get 10 5.60 519.58
{b} Other current assets 1 _152.49 9.7
3,092.85 7,136.73
Total Assats 19,696.45 16,115.80
EQUITY ANID UABILITIES
Equity
{a) Equity Shara capltal 12z 516000 5,150.90
(b} Other Equity 13 {427.21} 9.4
4,732.79 $,168.24
Uabilitles s
Nan - current Hahilitas
{a) Financial Lisbifities
() Borrowings 18 7,105.36 5,747.16
(i) Gther financial liabitities 15 3R0.16 21%.15
{b)} Provisions 16 6.97 -
{¢) Lease liabilitles 17 2161 -
{d} Deferred tax Niabilitles {Net) 18 454.98 312.29
{e) Other Non Current Liahilities 19 4,588.93 4,095.97
12,558.01 10,370.57
Currant Habllities —
{s) Financlal Uabllities
(1) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises - .
{b} Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than mitre
enterprises and simall enterprises 20 715.62 133.38
{i1) Other financlal fiabilitles 21 1,502.8% 279.34
{b} Leasa Liabilitles 0.01 -
{c) Provisions 2 0.21
{d) Gther curvent fiabilities px] 186.92 152,97
2.405.65 $75.99
Total Equity and Uahilites 19,636.46 ___16,215.80
The accempanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements, 23
Az per our repart of even date
For k.5, Rao & Co,, Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Umited
Firm Reglstration No. 0031035 (P &
Mm.f Onast P/W‘l v
- ¥
Hitesh Rimar P Pradesp Panicker Anand Kumar Polamada
Partnar Directer Diractar
ICAl Mambiership No, 233734 DN : 02730418 DIN - 08540411
f"
x oo ~S‘~\p &- L—..i...y
Sandip Sinha Ray 3
Chief Financial Officer Campany Secretacy

Placa : Rengaturu

Date; June 01 2020

M.No: ACS23267

Place : Hyderahad
Date: June 01 2020




GMRA HYDERABAD AVIATION SEZ LiMITED
CIN No.U452097G 2007010056527

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31 2020

Place : Bengafuru
Oate: Jung 03 2020

Rinlakh
For the year ended For the year endad
Particulars Notes March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
. Revenue from Qperations 24 1,751.27 1,198.70
. Otherincoma 25 163.39 240.06
. Total Income 1+ 1t} 1,914.66 1,438.76
V.  Expenses
a.Concassion Fees 264.21 246.16
b. Emplayee Benefit Expenses 25 52.11 -
c.Finance Cost 2% 620.50 593,58
d.Depraclation and amortisation expensa 27 652.37 602.02
2.0ther expanses 28 618.83 320.83
Tatal expenses (v} 2,208.42 1,762.59
V.  Profit/{Loss) before tax {1 -1V} {293.75) 1323.83)
VI. Tax Expenses:
a. Currant Tax
L. Relating to current perlod - -
li. Relating to prior perlods - -
b. Deferred tax Hability H{Asset}
I. On Temporary Differences 29 142.69 50.44
il. MAT Cradit entitlement - -
Totat Tax Expenses (W) 142,69 50.44
VII. Profit/(Loss} for the year (V¥ - Vi) {436.45) {374.27)
Vil Other Comprehensive income
i. ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -
fi. Income tax refating to Items that will not be rectassified to profit or loss N -
: Total Other Comprehensive lncome for the year (VIN) -
IX. Total Comprehensive tncame for the year (VI + Vi) {436.45) {374.27)
X.  Earnings per equity share from Continuing operations: 30
Basic and Diluted {0.85) {0.73)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financlal Statements, 23
As per our raport of even date
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited
For K.S, Rao & Cy,, '
Chartered Accountants p , j /
Firm Registration No. 0031095, A ﬂlf (LR P Wé (W
X w Pradeep Panicker Anand Kumar Polamada
Director Diractor
Hitesh Kumar P DIN : 02730418 DI : 08540411
Partner i
ICAl Membarship No. 233734 (; /
YRt . .
’( Eeemn Iy —LAWJ....V %
Sandip Slnha Ray Kand] Sregrivisulu
Chief Financlal Officer Company Secretary

M.No: ACS23267

Place : Hyderabad
Date: june 01 2020




GMR HYDERABAD AVIATION SEZ LIMITED
CIN No.U45209TG2007PLCD56527
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

X Iin Lakby
For the year ended March  For the Yaar ended
Particulars 31,2020 March 31, 2019
L Cash flaw from operating activitles:
A, Profit/{Loss) before tax {293.76) (323.83)
8, Adjustments to reconcife (loss} / profit hefore tox to net cash flows
a. Depreclation and amortization expenses 652.37 602.02
b. Excess provistons/ Credit Balances written back (0.02) {0.57)
¢, Interast Income : {20.93) (17.51}
d. income from tnvestments:
l.  Change in fair value .45 3.08
il. Galns on sale of investments (77.85) (118.60}
e. Amortisation of Deferred Income (58.69) {34.00}
f. Interest paid on borrowings (finance cast) 579,03 567.63
g- Amostisation of Upfront fee 7.07 10.28
h. Notional Interest on Security deposit 27.76 15.57
I, Income from straightlinlg of laase ravenue (274.79) -
. Rentals reversed as per IND AS 116 (2.78} -
k. Interest expense on Lease llability 277 -
834.40 1,027.81
C.  Adjustment for changes in working capital:
a. Decrease / (Increase) in trade receivables {578.60) {762.63)
b. Decrease/ (increase) in other current assets {142.35) 15.12
¢. Decrease / (increase) in other Non-current assets (16.15) {7.44)
d. Decrease / {increase) In other financial assets 499,01 {499.01)
e. (Decrease) /Increase in trade payables 581,75 (595.23)
f. (Decrease) /increase in other financial liabilities 1,057.43 62,00
g (Decrease} /increase in Non-current llabilities 551.66 325.85
h. (Decrease) /Increase in other current liabilities 24,15 36.45
i. (Decrease) /Increase in provisions 6.97 -
1,983.88 {1,424.88)
D. Cash generated from operations {A+B+C) 2,524.52 {720.91)
Less: Direct taxas paid (net of refunds) {7.03) (51,08}
Net cash flow from f{used in) operating activities (1) 2,517.49 {771.99)
. Cash flows from investing activites
a. Purchase of fixed assets, including CWIP (1,751.14) {479.38)
b, Proceeds from sale of financlal Instruments {Investments) 11,361.01 8,285.62
¢ Purchase of financial instruments (lnvestments) {11,341,00} {6,522.00)
d. Profit on Sale of Current Investments 77.85 -
e. Interest income received 43.32 -
Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (i) {1,609.96) 1,384.24
. Cash flows from financing acilvities
a. Proceeds from borrowings 1,441.12 -
b. Repayment of borrowings - (68.00}
€. Interest paid far the year (579.03) {567.63)
Net cash flow fused in) financing activities {ili} 862,10 [627.63)
V. NetIncrease/ (decrease)} in cash and cash eguivalents (i+ 1} + i} 1,769.62 {115.38)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 330.63 446,01
V. Cosh and cash equivalents at the end of the periad 2,160.25 330.63




GMR HYDERABAD AVIATION SEZ LIMITED
CIN No.LU45209TG2007PLCOSE527
STATEMENT CF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

K in Lakh
Forthe yearended March  Forthe Year ended
Partculars 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Wi. Components of cash and cash equivalents;
2. Cashon hand - -
b, Cheques, Drafts and Stamps on hand - -
¢ With banks:
L Qn Current Account 75.78 33.63
Il On Deposit Account having original maturity less than three 2,024.45 297.00
months
Total cosh opd cosh equivalents 2100.24 330.63

v of Significant Accounting Policias

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of aven date

For and on behalf of the Soard of Directors of

GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited

ForK.5. Rac & Co,,
Chartered Accountants

/ﬁmdz“f IT?‘W!"M,

Fism Begistration No, 0031095
Pradeep Panicker
Director
. DIN : 02730418
Hitesh Kumar P L ) i
Partner Ao By, Ll
ICAl Membership No. 233734 Sandip Sinha Ray
Chief Financial Officer

Placa : Hyderabad
Date: June G1 2020

Place : 8engalury
Date: june 01, 2020

Pt

Anand Kumar Pofamada

Director

Company Secretary
M.No: AC523267




GMR HYDERABAD AVIATION SEZ LIMITED
CIN No.U45209TG2007PLCO56527
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

T in Lakh
Note As at As at
No. Particulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
6  Other Non Current Assets
A. Capital Advances - Unsecured, Considered Good
i, Related parties - -
li. Others 573.20 149.60
Totalf 573.20 149.50 |
Other Non Current Assets
a. Balance with Statutory Authorities 78.99 70.82
b. Lease Equlisation Receivable 274.79 -
C Prepaid Expenses 7.98 -
Total 934.96 __22042
7 Investments - Current
Investments in Mutual Funds
$BI Liquid Fund Regular Growth 420.39 440.85
March-20; 12,920,172 Units {Mar-19: 15116.578 Units}
Total 4_59_:39 440.85
8  Trade Receivables
Unsecured, Considered Good
a. Related Parties 5,731.51 5,689.50
b. Others 683.03 146.44
Less: Expected Credit Loss on ahove - -
Total 6!414.54 5,835.94

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other
person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a

partner, a director or 8 member,

9  Cash and Bank Balances
a.Cash and cash eguivalents
Balances in Bank a/c's

Current Accounts . 75.78 33.63
Deposits with original maturity of lass than three months - -
Total 75.78 33.63
b.Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents
Deposits with less than three months maturity* 2,024.46 297.00
Total 2,024.46 297.00

* Debt Service Reserve is maintained in the form of fixed Deposit as per the term loan agreement with Aditya Birla Finance

Limited.

10  Otherfinancial assets - Current

a. Interest accrued on bank deposits 5.60 20.57
b. Non Trade Receivable - -
i, Related parties - 498,50
¢.  Un-billed revenue
i.  Related partles - -
it. Others - 0.51
Total 5.60 519,38
11 Other Current Assets:
a. Advance for Purchases and Expenses 5.79




GMR HYDERABAD AVIATION SEZ LIMITED
CIN No.U45209TG2007PLC056527

NQTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

X in Lakh

Note As at As at
No. Particulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
b. Balance with Statutory Authoritles 2.91 2.99
¢. Prepaid Expenses 130.94 0.96

Total 152,09 9.73




GMR HYDERABAD AVIATION SEZ LIMITED
CIN No.U45209TG2007PLCO56527
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

R in Lakh
Note Particulars As at As at
No. March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
i2  Equity Share Capital:
A, Authorfsed Share Capital:
7,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 7,500.00 5,500.00
B. Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up share capital:
5,16,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 5,160.00 5,160.00
C. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of year:
in no. of Sharas
At the beginning of the year 5,16,00,000 5,16,00,000
Share Capital Issued during the year - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 5,16,00,000 5,16,00,000
In value of Shares
At the beginning of the year 5,160.00 5,160.00
Share Capital Issued during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 5,160.00 5,160.00
D. Rights attached to the Equity Shores:
The company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs. 10/- per share with one vote per each share.
in the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity
shares held by the shareholders.
E. Shares held by Holding Company:
M/s. GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 5,16,00,000 5,16,00,000
F. Details of Sharehalders holding more than 5% shares in the company:
Equity Shares:
a. M/s. GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 100% 100%

As per vecords of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declaration received from
sharehoiders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represent both legal and beneficial ownership of
shares.

13  Other Equity

Retuined Earnings
At the beginning of the year 9.24 383.51
Ind As 116 Adjustment - -
Profit for the year (436.45) (374.27)

At the end of the year 427.21) 9.24




GMRH

YDERABAD AVIATION SEZ LIMITED

CIN No.U45209TG2007pPLCO56527

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

X in Lakh

Note Particulars As at Asat
Na. March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

14 Borrowings - Non Current
Term loan from a Bank (Secured)

Term loan from financial institutions (Secured) 7,285.36 5,837.16
Less: Current Maturitles 180.00 90.00
Total 7,105.36 5,747.16

15

i6

18

1. During the FY17-18, the company has taken Term loan from Aditya Birla Finance Limited {ABFL} at an interest rate of 9.4 %
p.a. e, 1year MCLR pius 1.2% margin, repayable over 51 structured quarterly Installments beginning from September 2017.

2. The Term loan is secured by first ranking charge on Leasehold rights, title, Interest and benefit in respect of Sub-lease Land
together with all buildings, structures etc on the sald land, movable assets and intangibles of whatsoever nature In both
present and future, revenues, baok debts, receivables, bank accounts including TRA, DSRA etc.

3. Durin the Year the company has taken loan from HSBC at an interest rate of 9%p.a i.e 1 Year MCLR plus 0.75% margin
repyable over 20 Quarterly Installments begining from June 2021.

Other financial liabilities - Non - Current:
A. Security Deposits
a. Related Parties : - 11,00
b. Others 318.45 204.15
B. Non Trade Payables
a. Related Partles - -

b. Others - -
C. Retention money from Vendors 61.71 -
Total 380.16 215.15
Provisions
Provision for Gratiuty 0.60 -
Provision for Leave Encashment 6.37 -
Total 6.97 430.30
Deferred Taxes:
A. Net deferred tax recognised in Balance Sheet
a. Fairvalue of financial (assets)/liabilitles 0.09 021
b. Difference in WDV of fixed assets 488.39 430.57
¢ Tax Holiday Reversals (3.30} (88.29}
d. Mat Credit entitlement (30.20) (30.20)
Total 454.98 31229

B. Mavement in Deferred Taxes
a. Deferred tax (asset)/liability - Profit and loss 142.69 50.44
b. Deferred tax (asset}/liabllity - Other comprehensive Income - -
¢, MAT Credit utilised during the year - -

d. MAT Credit entitled during the year - -
142.69 ' 50.44

The Company is entitled to claim tax holiday for any 10 consecutive years out of 15 years, from the year of commencement of
commercial operations under Section 80-IAB of the Income Tax Act, 1961, with regard to income from SEZ operations. The
company had commenced its commercial operations in 2010-11. Management, based on the projected future taxable income,
expects to avail such tax hollday from the Financial year 2020-21 which lasts up to Financial year 2023-24. Accordingly, the
company has recognised deferred tax liabllity on temporary differences as on March 31, 2019 after considering the deferred
tax reversals during the tax holiday period.

et
e B,

o

Lceouniants

Chartered




GMR HYDERABAD AVIATION SEZ LIMITED
CIN No.U45209TG2007PLC056527
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

% in Lakh
Note As at Asat
Particul
No. rticulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019

19  Other Non - current liabilities:
A. Un-earned revenue
B. Deferred Income

 orartered

sccountants

Total

3,470.00 3,294.47
1,118.93 801.50
4,588.93 4,095.97




GMR HYDERABAD AVIATION SEZ LIMITED
CIN No.U45209TG2007P1.C0O56527
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

X in Lakh
Note . As at As at
No. Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
20 Trade Payables - Current:
A. Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises - -
B. Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than - -
micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
a. Related Parties 98.53 12.15
b. QOthers 617.09 121.73
Total 715.62 133.88
21 Other financial liabilities - Current:
A, Security Deposits
a. Related Parties
b. Others - -
A, Current maturities of long term borrowings 180.00 90.00
8. NonTrade Payables
a. Related Parties - 9.13
b. Others 1,088.37 75.02
C. Retenilon money from Vendors 234.52 104.99
Total 1,502.89 279.14
22 Provisions
Pravision for Super Annuation fund 0.21 -
Total 0.21 -
23  Other current liabilities:
A. Advance from Customers
A. Un-earned revenue 76.63 7797
8. Statutory Liabilities
a. GST Payable 2.48
b. Witholding Taxes Payable 37.86
C. Deferred Income 69.95
Total 186.92




GMR HYDERABAD AVIATION SE2 LIMITED

CIN No.lJA5209TG2007PLL056527 .
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Xin Lakh
Note Forthe year ended For the year ended
Particulars
No. are March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
24  Revenue from Operatinng:
A, Sale of Services
Rental _ - 1,160:94
Incorme From Sub lease 1,673.37 -
8. Qther Operating lncome
a. IT services - -
b. Common Area Maintanance 77.80 37.76
: Total 1,751.27 1,198.720

theome from subleose of assets has accounted os per ind AS 116 “Leases” for the year ended March 31, 2020, Compuaratives are
accounted far os per Ind AS 17,

25 Dther Income:
A. interastincome

|. Deposit with Banks 20.93 17.51
ihOthers R 6.14. 26.02
8. Amortisation of Deferrad Rental Income 53.59 34.09

C. Other Non-operating Income (Net of Expenses)
4. Income from Investments
i. Change in Fair Yalue {0.45) (3.08)
li. Gain onSale of tnvestments 7285 118.60

b. Provisions written back;

i Excas; provislons/ Credit Balances written back 0.02 0.57
0. Miscellngous ncome 0.21 46.35
: Total 163.39: 240.06
25 Employee Benefit Expenses
a. Salarias wages and bonus 43.29 -
b. Contribution to provident and other funds 1.85 -
[ Gratuity expenses .60 -
di Leave Encashment expenses 6.37 -
: Totat 52.11 -

26  Finance Costs

a. [nterest on Borrowings 579.06 577.92
b. Bank Charges 0.02 0.10
c. Amortisation of interest.or Security Deposits 27.76 15.57
d. interest on Lease liability 2.77 -
e, 1 Interest Others 0.03 -
f.  Other Borrowing Cost 11,26 -
Total 620.90 593.59
27  Depreclation and amortisation expense:
Deprecidtion on Praperty, Plant and Equipment 651.93 602,02
Depreciation an ROU Assets 0.44 -
Total 652,37 602,02

28  Other expenses

a  Powerand Water® 11432 -
b, Rentalexpenditure - 2.78
€. Repaies and maintenance 45.16 47.72
d.  Payments to Auditers
i asauditors 2.50 2.80
il. forotherServices 6.10 0.04
e. Ratesand Taxes . 25.15 3.80
f Others
Insurance 440 3.24
Travelling and Conveyance B.69 7.00
Legal and professional charges 34153 216,80
Communication Cost 0.44 0.09
Printing and Stationery 0.18 0.01
Directors sitting fee - 0.02
Subscription fee 0.6% 1.77
Security Charges 33.17 19.63
Manpower outsourcing Charges 9.18 6.02
Exchange difference (net) - 0.03
Advertisement and Sales Promotion © 2235 4,23
Miscellaneous expenses 11.06 5.03
Total 618.83 320.82

* Power and water charges disclosed are net of recoveries from customers, During the previous year the amounts are
disclased in other income as the recoveries are higher than the expenditure. in current year; dus to change in the rates .

chiarged to custoiners, expenditure is in excess of recoveries. P
B! , EXpen: %ﬁ;&‘\j{}-”‘l{%{:\
N3 R,
s, £

Chartered

Accountants




GMR HYDERABAD AVIATION SEZ UMITED
CEN No.U45209TG2007PLC056527

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

A, Equity Share Capital R in Lakh
Particulars At the beginning Changes during the year At the end of the year
of the year
3 For the year ended March 31, 2020 5,160.00 - 5,160.00
i For the yaar ended March 31, 2019 5,160.00 - 5,160,00
B. Other Equity X in Lakh
Particulars Retained Earnings Total
I Balavice as at March 32,2019 9.24 .23
Profit/ {Loss) for the year {436.45) {436.45}
Othes Comprehansive income for the yvear - -
n. Balance as at arch 31,2020 {427.21) {427.21)

The aczompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements,

Ag perour report of even date

Eor K.S. Rao & Co.,
Chartersd Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0031095

Hitesh Kumar P
Partner
[CAY Mermbership No. 233734

Place : Bengaluru
Date: June 01 2020

crartered
sccountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited

Bmo!ﬁf Paﬂ«.»-'cfu__ P W {{ g

Pradeep Pauicker
Director
DIN £ 02730418

:& E— ‘&"@’ A, F
Sandip Sinha Ray
Chief Financlal Officer

e

Place : Hyderabad
Date: June 01 2020

W

Anand Kumar Polamada
Directar
DIN : 08540411 oA
S /
Kandi Sraejpi fu
Company Secratary
M.No: ACS23267
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GMR HYDERABAD AVIATION SEZ LIMITED
QN No.U45209TG2007PLCO56527
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

5 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
For the year ended March 31, 2020 X In Lakh
As at Asat
Sl.Na Particulars 01.04.2015 Additions Deletions 31.03.2020
oject Capital workin Progress® . ... 108254 133245 1,957.93 e ABT06
,(i]ConsLiItanci} Expenses S 203.14 ] 1006 13474 18_9._36;‘
..{ji).Rates and Taxes 6342 R £ e L LBE a0
{iit} Finance Cost S Jases L - . 2573 107,35
orandTotal T : ... 48218 .. 152586 867.78
*Praject capital work in proaress includes cost being incurred towards, leasehold impravements, plant and machinery and electrical Installations,
For the year ended March 31, 2019 . Rin Lakh
. As at e Asat
$l.No Particulars 01.04.2018 Additions Deletions 31.03.2019
01 Project Capitel work in Progress® 229572 291674 108254
02 Otherxpenses . I
... i) Comsultancy Expenses L a260 B3.56 . 203.14
(ii)RatesandTaxes _64.43 12.91 e 63,42
(i} Finance Cost ~ " " . 13693 385 77 13os
Grand Total ) 2,719.67 . 3,017.06 1,482.18

“Project capital work in progress includes cost befng incurred towards , leasehold improvements, plant and machinery and electrical installations.
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GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited

CIN U45209TG2007PLCO56527

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{All amounts in Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Carporate information

The Company was incorporated on December 4, 2007 as a wholly owned subsidiary of GMR Hyderabad
International Airport Limited. The main objective of the company is ta carry on the business of Development
of Infrastructure for Special Economic Zone (SEZ) and Domaestic Tariff Area including planning, designing,
operating and marketing a SEZ in an existing airport and domestic tariff area.

These financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors on June 01, 2020.

Significant accounting policies

2.1 Changes in accounting policies

Ind AS 116 Leases

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) issued the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 which notified Ind AS 116 - Leases. The amendment rules are
effective from reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2019. This standard replaces current
guidance under Ind AS 17.

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model.

Company as a Lessor:

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract
is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the
sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-
of-use asset arising from the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from requirement under Ind AS
17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles
as in Ind AS 17. Therefore, Ind AS 116 did not have an impact for leases where the company is the
lessor, except for recording the lease rent on systematic basis or straight line basis as against Ind AS 17
wherein, there was an exemption for not providing straight lining in case the escalations are in line
with the inflation.

Company as a Lessee:

Right-of-use assets




GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited

CIN U45209TG2007PLCO56527

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{All amounts in Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the
Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the
recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees,
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Company exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed
lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Shott-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery
and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered of low value (i.e., below Rs. 50,000). Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Transition provisiom:

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" and has applied to all lease
contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method. The Company elected to
use the transition practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying Ind AS 17 at the date of initial application. On 1 April 2019, the
Company has recognised lease liability measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments
and right-of-use (ROU) asset at an amount equal to lease liability. Accordingly, comparatives for the
year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted.




GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited

CIN U45209TG2007PLCO56527

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{All amounts in Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The Company also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the
commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase option
(‘short-term leases’), and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value (‘low-value

assets’).

Retirement and other Employee Benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has
no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the
related service, If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet
date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a
liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an
asset to the extent that the pre- payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a
cash refund.

Retirement benefit in the form of Superannuation Fund and Employee State Insurance are defined
contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year
when the contributions to the respective funds are due. The Company has no obligation, other tharn
the contribution payable to the respective funds.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be
made to a separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan
is determined based on actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
i) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
i) The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss:

i) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
1i}) Net interest expense or income
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Short term employee benefits

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as
short- term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at
the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as
long- term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are
provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end.
Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. -

However, the Company presents the entire provision towards accumulated leave as a current Hability
in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve
months after the reporting date.

2.2 Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS), under the
historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured
at fair values, the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) {to the extent notified). The ind AS are
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies {indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
Assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when

they occur.
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(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

{v)

2.3 Significant accounting policies

{a) Current versus non-current classification

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management
judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based
upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
technigues including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk
and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments. See note 30 and 31 for further disclosures.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment-

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates
arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the management. Considering the applicability of
Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013, the management has re-estimated useful lives and residual
values of all its property, plant and equipment. The management believes that depreciation rates
currently used fairly reflect its estimate of the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment.

Contingencies

Management judgment is required for estimating the possible inflow/outflow of resources, if any,
in respact of contingencies/claims/litigations against the company/by the campany as it is not
possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

Impairment of non- financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets are tested for impairment when events occur
or changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is [ess
than its carrying value. The recoverable amount of cash generating units is higher of value-in-use
and fair value less cost to sell. The calculation involves use of significant estimates and assumptions
which includes turnover and earnings multiples, growth rates and net margins used to calculate
projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, future economic and market conditions.
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The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current

classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

¢ Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading

* Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

¢ ltis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

¢ Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

¢ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

(b) Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in INR (Indian rupees), which is the functional currency of the
Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

Fransactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional currency spot rates
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in the
statemenit of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of histarical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The
gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items

whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss,
respectively).
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{(c) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

o In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing

the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as foliows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

¢ level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

¢ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization
(hased on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value

hierarchy as explained above.
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(d) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The
Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary
obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit
risks.

However, sales tax/ value added tax (VAT)/GST is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather,
it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly,

it is excluded from revenue

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recogrized:

» Rental income
Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.

¢ Interest income

» For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipis over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the group estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest
income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

» For other than debt instruments, Interest income is accounted on a time proportion basis taking
into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

{e) Concession fee

(f)

The concession fee is computed as a percentage of income from land lease of the Company pursuant to
the terms and conditions of the agreement and is recognized as charge to the Statement of profit and Joss.

Taxes

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and Habilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and
generates taxable income. p
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Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provision where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realized, or the Iiability'is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

{g) Property, plant and equipment
The company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment
recognised as at March 31, 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the
deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment as on April 01, 2015, {Date of transition to Ind AS).

Capital work in progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under
development as at the balance sheet date.

Plant and eqguipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs
for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and
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(h}

equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on
their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value
only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance or extends its estimated useful life. All other expenses on existing property, plant and
equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are
charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Particulars Useful lives as per Sechedule-ll of | Useful lives estimated by the
the Companies act 2013 management (years)

Buildings on leasehold land 30 30
Taxiways Not Prescribed 30

Roads # 5 10

Plant and machinery 15 15
Efectrical installations and 10 10
equipment

Furniture and fittings 10 10

Office equipment 5 5
Computers and data processing units 3or6 3or6

The management has estimated, supported by independent assessment of professionals, the useful lives of
the following class of assets.

#The useful lives of Roads — other than RCC are estimated as 10 years. This is higher than those
indicated in schedule (I

Leasehold improvements are amortized over shorter of estimated useful lives or lease period.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon
disposal or when no future econontic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is de-recognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Barrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that

necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part
of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing casts. o
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(i} Impairment of non-financial assets

(i)

The Company assesses, at each reparting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable

amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of maney and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into
account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or
other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken
to OCL For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous
revaluation surplus. An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior periods/ years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions

General _ :
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any

reimbursement.
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If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the fiability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

(k) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability

or equity instrument of another entity.

i. Financial assets

(A} Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the
trade date, i.e,, the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

(B) Subsequent measurement:
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in to two categories:

a. Equity investments measured at fair value through Profit and Loss.
b. Debt instruments at amortized cost
(a) Equity investments:

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a
business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other
equity instruments, the group may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such
election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L.
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{(b) Debt instruments at amortized cost:
A ’debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPP1} on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance
income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or
loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

{C) De-recognition:
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily de-recognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet)
when:

a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, and

¢} The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

d) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

ii. Financial liabilities

(A) Initial recagnition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

{B) Subsequent measurement:

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
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(i) Loans and borrowings:
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss.

{C) De-recognition:
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires.

iit. Reclassification of financial assets
The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial .
liabilities. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reparting period following the change
in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognized gains, losses (including
impairment gains or losses) or interest.

(I} Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of
the Company’s cash management.

{m) Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible abligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non—occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the abligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognize a contingent lability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent assets are only disclosed when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity.
(n} Earnings per share

Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or foss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

/5) RAQ, \\
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For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earnings per Share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are

adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

{o) Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of
the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined henefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes

in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for
plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies

consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality
tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and

gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

24 Sale Income From Operations

For the year For the year
Ended 31 Ended 31
Particulats Match 2020 March 2019
Others within India 1,751.27 1,198.70
Total 1,751.27 1,198.70
Time of rendering of Setvices As on 31st Match 2020
For the year For the year
Ended 31 March 2020 Ended 31 March 2019
Particulats Performance Performance
obligation Petformance | obligation petformance
satisfied at | obligation satisfied at | obligation
point in satisfied peint in satisfied
time over time time over time
Income From Operations
Others 1,751.27 1,198.70
Total - 1,751.27 1,198.70
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29. Income tax expense

i. Interest on delayed remittance of TDS
ii. Provision for reduction in value of inventory
fi. [tems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

iv. 1/5th of transition amount u/s 115J8 (2C)

MAT tax pravision under 1151B (g + h)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Income tax expense:
a. Current tax
b. Deferred tax arising from temporary differences 142.69 50.44
¢. MAT Credit entitlement
Total tax expense for the year 142.69 50.44
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Effective Tax Reconciliation: -
a. Net Profit/{Loss) before taxes {293.76) {323.83)
Tax rate applicable to the company as per normal
b. provisions 26% 26.00%
c. Tax expense on net profit (c = a*b) (76.38) {84.20)
d. Increase/(decrease) in tax expenses on account of: -
i.  Non-taxable income/Exempt Income (7.28) (4.45)
ii. Accelerated Depreciation {57.89) (25.79)
iii. Expenses not allowed under income tax - -
iv. Expensesthat are allowed under payment basis - -
v. Unabsorbed business loss 141.44 113.63
Other adjustments { Fair value adjustment of
vi. Investments) 0.12 0.80
76.38 84.20
e. Taxas per normal provision under Income tax (c + d) 0.00 0.00
f.  Taxrate applicable to the company as per MAT provisions 19.24% 19.24%
g MAT Tax expense on net profit
h. Increase/(decrease) in MAT tax expenses on account of:
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, " For the year ended For the year ended
Deferred Taxes: March 31 2020 March 31 2019
As on the reporting date:

A, Otherthan OCl component
-Difference in WDV of fixed assets (488.39) (430.57)
-Fair Value of Financial Assets/liabilities (0.09) (0.21)
-Tax holiday reversals 3.30 88.29
-Brought forward losses
B. Total for the year {485.18) (342.49)
Expense/(income) Recognised for the year ended:
A.  Deferred tax liability/(asset) / recognised in
statement of profit and loss:
a. As MAT Credit entitlement - -
b Others 142.69 50.44
B. Deferred tax recognised in Other Com prehensive ) )
Income
C. :Zr)]iieg:d tax recognised in Total Comprehensive 142.69 50.44

Note: The Company is entitied to claim tax holiday for any 10 consecutive years out of 15 years, from the year
of commencement of commercial operations under Section 80-IAB of the Income Tax Act, 1961, with regard
to income from SEZ operations. The company had commenced its commercial operations in 2010-11,
Management, based on the projected future taxable income, expects to avail such tax holiday from the
Financial year 2020-21 which lasts up to Financial year 2023-24. Accordingly, the company has recognized
deferred tax liability on temporary differences as on March 31, 2019 after considering the deferred tax

reversals during the tax holiday period.

30. Earnings per share (EPS)

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS)

computations: :
Particulars For the yearended | For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
a. Profit/(Loss) for the period attributable to the Share Holders {436.45) (374.27)
b. Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10/-each 516.00 516.00
Earnings per equity share (Basic and Diluted) - (a) / {b) {0.85) {0.73)
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31. Retirement and other employee benefits:

a)

b)

Defined contribution plan:

Contribution to provident and other funds under employee benefits expense are as under:

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2020
Contribution to provident fund 1.18
Contribution to superannuation fund 0.42
Total 1.6
Defined benefit plans:

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation which is funded through policy taken from Life
insurance Corporation of India and Liability (net of fair value of investment in LIC) is provided for
on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each
financial year. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on
departure at 15 days’ salary (based on last drawn basic salary) for each completed year of service.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement
of profit or loss/OCI and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for defined benefit
plans/ obligations:

Net employee benefit expense (recognized in Employee Cost):

Particulars 31-Mar-20

Current service cost 0.07

Interest cost on benefit obligation -

Net benefit expense 007

Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI): NIL

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company's plans are
shown below:

Particulars 31-Mar-20
Discount rate 6.80%

Rate of compensation increase 6.00%
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Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars 31-Mar-20
Opening defined benefit obligation

Interest cost

Current service cost

0.60
Benefits paid
Acquisition cost

20.20
Closing defined benefit obligation

20.80

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: NIL

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is shown below:

Particulars 31-Mar-20
Discount rate

Effect due to 1% increase in discount rate (1.96)
Effect due td 1% decrease in discount rate 2.28

Salary escalation rate

Effect due to 1% increase in attrition rate 1.35
Effect due to 1% decrease in attrition rate (1.54)
Withdrawal Rate

Effect due to 1% increase in salary increase rate 0.179
Effect due to 1% decrease in salary increase rate {0.208)
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The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plar in the future year.

Particulars 31-Mar-20
31-Mar-21 1.25
31-Mar-22 1.43
31-Mar-23 1.56
31-Mar-24 1.69
31-Mar-25 2.26
March 31, 2026 to March 31, 2030 18.32

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 10

years (31 March 2019: 10 years).

32. Financial Assets - Investments (detailed disclosure)

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
No. of units Fair Value No. of units Fair Value
Current Investments:
A. Investment in
Funds at FVTPL
§BI Liquid Fund Regular Growth 12,920.172 420.38 15,116.578 440.85

33. Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis):

For the year ended

Particulars Nature March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Seminar Participation Fee Other expenses 0.36

1.15
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34. Details of transactions with related parties
A. Names of related parties and related party relationship -
(i) Holding company GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited

{ii} | GHIAL's holding company GMR Airports Limited

{iii) | GAL's holding company GMR Infrastructure Limited

(iv) | Ultimate holding company GMR Enterprises Private Limited ( Former known as
GMR Holdings Private Limited

(v} | Fellow subsidiary companies * GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited

GMR Hyderabad Aerotropolis Limited
GMR Aerospace Engineering Limited*

GMR Aero Technic Limited
vi) | Fellow Subsidiary of Holding Company’s GMBR: Airport Developers Limited
Holding Company GMR Krishnagiri SEZ Limited
RAXA Security Services Limited
vii) | Joint Venture of the Parent company Lagshya Hyderabad Airport Media Private Limited
(viii) | Key Management Personnel S.G.K Kishore - Director

Rajesh Kumar Arora-Director

Nair P.S —Director

Aman kapoor — Additional Director
Dhaval Bhatia - Manager

Sandip Sinha Ray - CFO

Kandi Sreenivasulu - Company Secretary

The details of related parties with which the company has entered into transactions during the year or
previous year has been disclosed.

* The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad Bench vide its Order dated July 26, 2019 has approved the
composite scheme of arrangement [amongst M/s GMR Hyderabad Air Cargo And Logistics Private Limited (“GHACLPL”
or “Transferor Company”), GMR Aero Technic Limited {"GATL” or “Demerged Company”), GMR Aetospace Engineering
Limited (“"GAEL” or “Transferee / Resulting Cempany”} and their respective Shareholders and Creditors] whereby
GHACLPL has merged with GAEL and Maintenance, Repair and Overhauling (“MRO") business of GATL have been
demerged and merged with GAEL from August 23, 2019 {being the “effective date” but with effect from April 01, 2018
as “Appointed Date”). Further, the name of GMR Aerospace Engineering Limited has been changed to GMR Air Cargo
and Aerespace engineering Limited {(“GACAEL”) w.e.f. September 25, 2019.
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B. Related party transactions

Sl No.

Related Party Transactions

April 01, 2019 to
March 31, 2020

April 01, 2018 to
March 31, 2019

m o T oo

Services received:

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited
GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited

GMR Airport Developers Limited

Raxa Security Services Limited

Lagshya Hyderabad Airport Media Private Limited

22.20
1.33
12.26
33.17
1.64

2.78
0.09
2.64
19.63
1.60

(i)

Concession Fee;
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited

264.21

246.16

(i} | a

income from Operations:
GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited
GMR Aero Technic Limited

580.59
348.99

553.41
373.66

Credit balances written back:
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited

(v)

Amaortization of Deferred Rental Income - Security
Deposit
GMR Aerospace Engineering Limited

2.77

3.00

{vi)

Interest expense on Security Deposits
GMR Aerospace Engineering Limited

1.26

113

{vii)

Unsecured Loan received :
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited

(viii)

Unsecured Loan repaid :
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited

Reimbursement of expenses claimed from the
Company during the year by its related parties:
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited

1500.38

716.23

Sale of Asset
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited

1,494.62

(xi)

Interest on Unsecured Loan
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited

(xit)

Corporate Guarantee taken by the Company on
behalf of its banks and financial institutions
against the loan taken:

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited

1433.00

(60.00)

{xiif)

ROU Asset
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited

21.18

(ix)

Lease Liability
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited

21.62

{x)

Depreciation on ROU Assets
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited

0.44

{xi)

Interest on Lease liability
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited

2.77

accountd

\ riered \
Cha nts




00'016°S 00°EvE’L Py yodiyy [euonjeussiuy peqelapAH YIND
SI3yunqg wolf uapy uvoy Jsumwbp Aubdwos )
buipio 241 wiouf papoay aaupIDND djpi0dioy
- :ummwf._q.wm sy g :umww,wum sy suonesue.) Aued pajejoy ‘ONIS
Heah ay3 jo pua dyi e saoyuesens Suipuessing °g
- 00'09T'g 00'09t‘s pauwi Kodiy Jeuoiieusanu) peqesapAH HIND ()
[eude) sseys jo anss) ’
{00€) {(zovs) {00°€) (9Z°15) pajwiT Auedwos BuyssuiBug asedsoiay YD
's)sodaq Ayunaas - awosuy paiiafaqg (1)
- {00°TT) (9z'zT) paywi] Auedwos Supesuidug sdedsoiay YND
 Aundwor {n)
01 / wouf pind/( pamadat) ysodsq Aynsas
(82'6) - (€1'6}) Pa1IWI 831138 AjUnDas exey | o
{Ts'TT) - (19°9) p11 s1odojsasg Lodaiy Yo | p
05°861 - (or°1zsT) paywi yodily [euolieulaly peqesspAy YD | 2
S0'TZ9'7 - STrEE'e PN JIUYIBLOIBY HYIND | q Y
S¥'890°¢ - 86°0TG'E paywi] Auedwod Suusauiduy asedsosay HND | e
:(a1qphng) / ajquianoaay arunipg
ua.un) UILINY-UON Ny juasng-uop
6TOC ‘TE YoJepy e sy 0202 ‘TE Yoo 1e sy siendiyed *ON IS

JeaA ay3 jo pus ays 3e se Awied pajejal u) Suipueisno ssoueeg

(poress asimiaylo ssojun 'sypje) u) ssadny u) spunowe |jy)

0202 “T€ Yosew popus Jeak o3 40§ susILIIEIS |eluUeUld 3yl 03 S3I0N
LZ995001dL00ZDL602SPN NID

PajyWN] Z35 uonEINY peqesspAd YIAD




GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited

CIN U45209TG2007PLCO56527

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
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35. Fair Values

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Carrying value Fair value

Particulars March 31,2020 | March 31,2019 | March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Financial liabilities

Security Deposits 1,593.19 1,120.81 318.45 215.15
Total 1593.19 1,120.81 318.45 215.15
Financial Assets

Investment in Mutual funds 420.02 440.04 420.39 440.85
Total 420.02 440.04 420.39 440.85

(A} Significant observable inputs used in estimating the fair values
{i) Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on
parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, and individual creditworthiness of the
custemer and the risk characteristics of the financed project.
(if) Interest Rate factor has been considered at a rate of 11.44% p.a. by the company for discounting the
Security deposit received from the customer as on or before March 31, 2019 and at the rate of
10.73%p.a. towards the security deposits received from April 01, 2019. '

(B} Fair valuation techniques

The Company maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets ar financial liabilities using the best
and most relevant data available. The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the
amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

(i) Fair value of cash and deposits, trade receivables, staff advances, trade payables, and other current
financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments.

(C) Fair valuation hierarchy
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of Company’s asset and liabilities,
grouped into Level 1 to Level 3 as described below:

{i) Quoted prices / published NAV {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level
1). It includes fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets and are based uoted
assets value (NAV) is published mutual fund operators at the balance sheet date.
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(ii) Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are abservable for the asset or liability,

(iii)

either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). It includes fair
value of the financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximize the use of obhservable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on the
company specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, then instrument is included in level 2.

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs} (level 3). if one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of Company’s asset and liabilities,
grouped into Level 1 to Level 3 as described below:

Particulars As at March 31, 2020
Level-1 Level-2 Level-3
Financial Assets measured at FVTPL
Invastments in Mutual Funds 420.39 - -
Particulars As at March 31, 2019
Level-1 Level-2 Level-3
Financial Assets measured at FVTPL
Investments in Mutual Funds 440.85 - -

During the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfer into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

36. Financial risk management objectives and policies

Financial Risk Management Framework

The Company is exposed primarily to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk and Market risk {fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates and interest rate), which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial
instruments. The Company assesses the unpredictability of the financial environment and seeks to mitigate
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company.

(@)

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of
default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk
is controlled by analyzing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to
whom the credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. Financial
instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk principally consist of trade );eceivaglgs,
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(i)

investments, derivative financial instruments, cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and other
financial assets. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration
of credit risk.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk was Rs 6,414.54 /- and Rs 5,835.94 as of March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019
respectively, being the total of the carrying amount of balances with trade receivables.

The total dues of the Company as at March 31, 2020 includes Rs.5,851.23/- (March 31, 2019 Rs.
5,689.50/-) from GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace engineering Limited{GACAEL) formally known as
GMR Aerospace engineering Limited(GAEL), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company’s holding
company, M/s GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited (GHIAL) . Out of the above dues, an
amount of Rs 5503.48/-. (March 31, 2018 Rs. 5,184.61/-) is outstanding for more than six months.
Considering the nature of business of GACAEL and based on the business projections and contracts
with Customer, management is confident that revenues of the company will improve, and the
Company will be able to recover its dues. Further, GHIAL has committed the support to GACAEL in
meeting its operational and financial obligations. Based on business projections and contracts
entered by the company with its customers and support letter from GHIAL, the management has
considered its dues from GACAEL are good of recovery and as such no provision has been made in
the books of account.

As per the Group Policy, Company has not provided any loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses on
Financial Instruments/Dues from Group Companies as no credit risk is involved forthwith.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The ohbjective
of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for
use as per requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
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The table below provides undiscounted cash flows towards long term borrowings and other financial
liabilities into relevant maturities based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual

maturity date:

Particulars On demand Less than 3 3t012 1to 5 years > 5years Tatal
months mornths

As at March 31, 2020

Borrowings - 45.00 135.00 3985.36 3120.00 7285.36

Trade payables - 715.62 - - 715,62

Other financial - 1322.89 - - 380.16 1702.45

liabilities

Statutory dues 40.34 40.34

Total 40.48 2084.80 135.00 3985.36 3500.16 9743.77

As at March 31, 2019

Borrowings - 22.50 67.50 1,500.00 4,320.00 5,810.00

Trade payables - 133.88 - - - 133.88

Other financial - 189.14 - - 1,120.81 1,309.94

liabilities

Statutory dues 35.77 - - - - 35.77

Total 35.77 345.52 67.50 1,500.00 5,440.81 7,385.59

(iif) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result
from changes in the foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, credit, liquidity and other
market changes. The Company’s exposure to market risk is primarily on account of interest rate risk,

A) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of change in market interest rates. The company performs a comprehensive
corporate interest rate management policy. As at March 31, 2019, 100% of the Company's
borrowings are at a floating rate of interest.

With all other variables held constant, the following table demonstrates the impact of borrowing
cost on floating rate portion of loans and borrowings.

- Increase/Decrease Effect on Profit Before
Interest rate Sensitivity . ! N
in Basis points Tax

For the year ended March 31, 2020
Term Loans 23 13.21

-25 (18.21)
For the year ended March 31, 2019
Term Loans 25 14.78

-25 (14.78)
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37. Leases
Company as a lessee

The Company has entered into certain cancellable operating lease agreements mainly for office premises
and hiring equipment’s and certain non-cancellable operating lease agreements towards land space and
office premises and hiring office equipment’s and IT equipment’s. The lease rentals paid during the year and
the maximum obligation on the fong term non - cancellable operating lease payable are as follows:

Right of Use Assets

Class of Class of Assets | Class of
Assets 1 2 Assefs 3

As at April 01, 2019 21.63 21.63

Additions )
See;)rrecratmn/amortlzatlon during the (0.44) (0.44)

As at March 31, 2020

Particulars Total

21.19 21.19

Lease Liability

Particulars

Amount

As at April 01, 2019
Additions
Interest for the year

As at March 31, 2020

Repayment made during the year

21.63

2.77
-2.78

21.62

Disclosed as:

Nan-Cutrent

21.61

Current

0.01

Maturity profile of lease liability

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual

undiscounted payments.

Year ended 31 March 0to 1year 1to 5years > 5 years Total
2020
Lease liakilities (Note 18) 0.01 0.05 21.56 21.62
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38,

Following amount has been recognized in statement of profit and Loss account

Particulars - Amount
Depreciation/amortization on right to use asset 0.44
Interest on lease liability 2.77

Expenses related to short term lease (included under other expenses) -
Expenses related to low value lease (included under other expenses) ’ -
Variable lease payments {included under other expenses) -
Total amount recognized in statement of profit and loss account 3.21

The Company has total cash outflow of leases Rs. 2,78. The Company also had non cash additions to right of
use assets and lease liability Rs. 21.63 Lacs.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are
negotiated by management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the
Company’s business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether these
extension and terminatian options are reasonably certain to be exercised.

Company as a lessor

Company has sub-leased land to various parties under operating leases having a term of 20 to 50 years. The
leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are

renegotiable.

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Within one year 1,234.19 1,592.87
After one year but not more than five years 5,485.47 6,562.97
More than five years 27,082.87 35,212.80

Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company’s capital
management is to maximize the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure in consideration to the changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total capital. The Company’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio at an optimum Ievel to ensure
that the debt covenant are complied with.
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Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Borrowings including interest accrued on borrowing 7285.36 5,910.00
Net debt 7285.36 5,910.00
Equity Share Capital 5160.00 5,160.00
Other Equity {427.21) 9.24
Total Capital 4732.79 5,169.24
Capital and borrowings 12018.15 11,079.24
Gearing ratioc (Net Debt/ Total Equity) 60.62% 53.34%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define
capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to
immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any
interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended
March 31, 2019.

39. There are no outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
40. Commitments and Contingencies
A. Contingent Liabilities:

The Company had received Show Cause Notice dated July 17, 2015 from the Office of the Assistant
Commissioner of Customs, Central Excise and Service Tax wherein service tax refund of Rs.0.78/- Lakh has
been denied. Based on the internal assessment the management is confident that no provision is required to
be made as at March 31, 2020.

B. Commitments:

a. Capital Commitments: Estimated Value of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account not provided for (Net of Advances) Rs. 997.36/- (March 31, 2018: Rs. 909.18/-).

b. Other Commitments: Reveniue share @ 25% of the lease rentals earned on land leased by the
company is payable to GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited.

41. Details of Un-Hedged foreign currency: Rs Nil (March 31 2018: Rs Nil}

42. The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM)/Executive management of the company monitors the
operating results of its business as a single operating segment. As the company's revenues are generated
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from customers in India and all Non-Current operating assets are deployed in India, entity wide disclosures
are not applicable.

43. Impact of Covid-19

The outbreak of Corenavirus (Covid-19) pandemic globally and in India has caused significant disturbance
and slowdown of economic activities. The Lease rental revenue in the Company is not impacted due to this
currently and overall revenue is mostly similar as compared to Pre-covid period. The Company does not
expect:

a. anyimpact onits receivables as all receivables are currently being realized.

b. any breach of debt cavenants as Company has enough cash balance and inflow to meet it liabilities
towards interest and principal obligation if any.

¢. Any major impact on its planned capex deveiopment for upcoming Built to Suit projects.

Due to the nature of the pandemic and its treatment not available yet, the Company will continue to be
vigilant on various developments in future so as to insulate itself from any material adverse impact

44. Previous year/period figures have been regrouped and reclassified wheraver necessary to conform to
those of the current year.
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